
Janitorial Services: State Materials Office, Gainesville, FL 

RFP-DOT-12/13-9038-GH 

Mandatory Pre-Bid Meeting/Walk Thru and other submitted 

Questions and Answers 

 

 

Question: Do you provide consumables?    

Answer:  No, the vendor will provide all consumables. Paper products are considered 

consumables. All consumables will have to be approved by the Contract Manager, Mary Fossum.  

 

Question: Will you provide employee/visitor counts?     

Answer: There are approximately 200 staff persons at the State Materials Office. 

 

Question: Is there a State of Florida requisite pay?  

Answer: No. 

 

Question: Is this contract the same as the current contract?  

Answer: No, the Scope of Services for this contract is different from the current contract.  

 

Question: What is permissible as far as “background checks” go?   

Answer: Anyone with any kind of theft or any kind of violence will not be permitted to work at 

the State Materials Office or on this contract. 

 

Question: Do you want a local background check or a Level 2?  

Answer: Level 2 background checks will be required. 

 

Question: Are you currently using the green seal products?  

Answer: Yes, this is required by Executive Order 07-126. 

 

Question: How often is the outside window washing done?  

Answer: Every 6 months. 

 

Question: How long does it take for invoices to be paid?  

Answer: The Department has an allowance of net 30 days to pay invoices, however, if all of the 

information on the invoice is correct, typically about 2 weeks until payment is received. It could 

take longer during the holidays and/or backlogs of paperwork. In order to speed up the payment 

process, we highly recommend that the vendor request direct deposit for their payments.  

 

Question: Who is the current vendor?  

Answer: C & S Building Maintenance.  

 

Question: Did the current vendor fulfill his contract?  

Answer: Yes. 

 

 

 

 



Question: Will cleaning be done at night?  

Answer: Yes, cleaning will begin after 5:30 p.m. and needs to be completed by midnight. 

Cleaning can also be done on weekends and holidays. Any deviation from this schedule will 

have to be approved by the Contract Manager, Mary Fossum. 

 

Question: How much was the current contract?  

Answer: The current contract is $98,094.12 per year. The new contract’s scope is different from 

the current scope. 

 

Question: Can the Department terminate the contract without cause? 

Answer: Yes.  

 

Question: Can the vendor also terminate without cause?  

Answer: Yes. 

 

Question: Can you publish the layout of the buildings (showing carpet/tile/linoleum)? 

Answer: No, the Department will not publish the layout of the buildings.  

 

Question: Is the walk around required to bid?  

Answer: Yes.  

 

Question: Can we take photographs while touring the facility?  

Answer: Yes. 

 

Question: How will the floors in the Test Pit (Building B) be cleaned? 

Answer: The floors in the test pit need to be vacuumed up with a shoulder vacuum. You should 

not sweep dirt into the test pits. 

 

Question: Can we use a golf cart to help move the trash/recycle from the buildings to the 

dumpster and leave it at the State Materials Office. 

Answer: No. 

 

Question: Who is responsible for cleaning the eyewash stations?  

Answer: The State Materials Office is responsible for the eyewash stations. 

 

Question: How is recycle handled? 

Answer: The recycle must be separated out from the trash in separate color coded bins. 

 

Question: A section is taped off in the Geotechnical Lab; how do we clean in there? 

Answer: The equipment/testing in that area is very sensitive. You are not to go in that area. 

 

Question: How do we clean the epoxy floors?  

Answer: Please refer to the Scope of Services pertaining to hard surface floors.   

 

Question: How many bathrooms need to be cleaned? 

Answer: There are 12 bathrooms in the entire facility. 

 

 



Question: What is the height of the front windows in the lobby? 

Answer: The height of the glass in the lobby varies from 28 ft. on the side to 31 ft. in the center 

of the arch. 

 

Question: Do the hallway floors get stripped and waxed? 

Answer: Please refer to the Scope of Services pertaining to hard surface floors. 

 

Question: What is the square footage of the janitorial closets? 

Answer:  Building A – 35 sq. ft. 

 Building B – No space 

 Building C 1
st
 floor – 40 sq. ft. 

 Building C 2
nd

 floor – 50 sq. ft. 

 Building  D – 25 sq. ft. 

 Building E – 25 sq. ft. 

 

Question: Do you know the square footage of carpet, tile, and VCT? 

Answer:  Building A – 9,585 sq. ft. carpet, 400 sq. ft. tile, and 450 sq. ft. VCT 

 Building B – No carpet, 200 sq. ft. tile, 453 sq. ft. VCT, and 6,684 epoxy floor 

 Building C (1
st
 floor) – 6,514 sq. ft. carpet, 1,316 sq. ft. tile, and 1,242 sq. ft. VCT 

 Building C (2
nd

 floor) – 8,804 sq. ft. carpet, 561 sq. ft. tile, and no VCT 

 Building D – 8,835 sq. ft. carpet, 600 sq. ft. tile, and 28,911 sq. ft. epoxy floor 

Building E – 9,565 sq. ft. carpet, 579 sq. ft. tile, and 24,717 sq. ft. epoxy floor 

 

The above square footage is an approximation. The vendor is required to verify and bid the 

appropriate services for the facility. 

 

Question: Do we clean computers or monitors? 

Answer: No, you do not touch the computers or monitors. 

 

Question: What provisions/accommodations will you make for small companies? 

Answer: Small businesses have the exact same opportunity to do business with the Department 

as larger businesses. 

 

Question: Can we get a copy of the sign in sheet? 

Answer: Yes, it will be posted on the internet with the questions and answers. 

 

Question:  My company does not have to have a length of three years, but myself as the owner 

and management staff are required to have at least three years? 

Answer:  The company bidding on this work would have to have 3 years of experience. 

 

Question:  In regards to sub-contracting, how would I use my company's identity when I 

subcontracted under another company?  

Answer:  If you were a sub of another company, you cannot count that time as your company’s 

time toward the 3 years of experience. 

 

Question:  Will there be a negotiation period after the intended award is announced? 

Answer:  No. 

 



Question:  Is there a map of the complex we may have? 

Answer:  No, we cannot provide that. 

 

Question:  When was the last time strip and wax, carpet cleaning, and partition extraction was 

performed.  

Answer:  We do not have the information available. 

 

Question:  Are sanitary napkins and tampons to be included in the consumables to be ordered? 

Answer:  No. 

 

Question:  May we install chemical dilution control machines in the janitors’ closets to dispense 

cleaning products? 

Answer: No. 

 

Question:  May we have a list of all the restricted areas not to be cleaned? 

Answer:  If you are awarded vendor, we will provide it. 

 

Question:  What is the employee population of each building? 

Answer:  Provided total staff numbers, not broken down per building. 

 

Question:  Item 4 of miscellaneous services, page 25 of the RFP is confusing. Please clarify this 

item. 

Answer: This is referring to exterior trash receptacles, ash trays, water fountains, and special 

care for stains or gum. 

 

Question:  Item 4 of semi-annual services on page 26 of the RFP requires cleaning of all interior 

and exterior glass. There are two processes to cleaning exterior windows- basic washing to 

remove dust, dirt, and loose debris, and a chemical process to remove hard sun baked deposits 

and stains. Which process does the customer require? 

Answer: The Department expects the exterior glass to be clean without dirt, smudges, bird 

droppings or squeegee lines (or other problems); how you accomplish this is up to the vendor.  

 

Question:  Item 3 of monthly laboratory services, page 26 of the RFP requires “buff common 

areas if needed.” Generally, buffing is performed to rejuvenate the luster of a finished floor. 

Does the customer require buffing a concrete epoxy finished floor for the purpose of restoring a 

luster?  Please clarify. 

Answer: The concrete epoxy floor is to be cleaned and buffed as needed.  The luster shall be 

maintained by the vendor at all times.  Once again it is up to the vendor to figure out how/what 

to use.  The Department will require the floor finish remains with a clean shiny finish. 

 

 

Question:  The RFP states carpets will be cleaned in accordance with manufacturer’s 

specifications. Can the customer provide manufacturers specifications or are industry accepted 

standard practices acceptable? 

Answer:  Industry standards are acceptable unless the Department finds that the carpeting is not 

properly cleaned.  It should always be spot free and with no smell. 

 

 



Question:  Is propane floor equipment authorized for use inside the buildings and if so, is there 

an outside flammable storage locker the contractor can use to store propane canisters? 

Answer: No, propane is not authorized inside of the buildings. 

 

 

Question:  In regards to recycling office paper paragraph 1.28 on page 27 states recycling 

containers will be provided by the department. Does the department also provide the “other 

barrels” used to transport paper to outside dumpsters? 

Answer:  No, that is the responsibility of the vendor. 


